Re: Kulaluk Lease Area Application Public Consultation Period
The application to register the whole Kulaluk Lease Area as a heritage site under the Heritage Act has been a drawn-out affair, with decisions, appeals and several reports from researchers. Before requesting further information on the present state of affairs, it is probably worthwhile giving a summary of the nomination process so far.

On 21 October, 2014, the Heritage Council advised Donna Jackson of Larrakia Nation Aboriginal Corporation (LNAC) that their nomination had been unsuccessful. As a result, following an appeal by the Larrakia Nation (appellant) and Heritage Council NT (respondent), Magistrate Greg Cavanagh, Chairperson of the Lands, Planning and Mining Tribunal, on December 30, 2014, referred the matter back to the Heritage Council for reconsideration, citing recognition by the Heritage Council that:

· the struggle to win Kulaluk land was a significant event; 

· the lease contains sites of significance; 

· the land holds strong significance to the Larrakia people and other local Aboriginal inhabitants of the area; and

· the strength of attachment is proven by the number of different traditional owners or custodians who claim to speak for the land in question. 

Mr Cavanagh directed, pursuant to section 21F(1)(c) of the Act, that the Heritage Council decision not to register the Kulaluk Lease as a Heritage Site be set aside and “that the Council commission and obtain an objective and thorough historical analysis of all the relevant material pertaining to sections 11(a), (g) and (h) criteria of the Act before reconsideration.”

Following the Cavanagh decision, the Heritage Council appointed Dr David Ritchie to carry out the “objective and thorough historical analysis of all the relevant material”.

After considering Dr Ritchie's report on 21 August, 2015, in accordance with 25(3) of the Heritage Act, Ms Elizabeth Close as Acting Chairman of the Heritage Council, wrote to Donna Jackson of the Larrakia Nation on 8 September, 2015, reaffirming the Council's decision that the Kulaluk Lease is not of heritage significance. As required under the Act, a “Review Notice” was attached to the letter, stating: 
· The Kulaluk Lease area symbolises the first land grant made to the Larrakia people, in acknowledgment of their longstanding traditional ownership and occupation of land and seas in the Darwin region.

· The grant was the first land title granted to an Aboriginal group in an urban environment in Australia; and
· the lease area has a special association with the Larrakia people. 
Considering that the significance of the Lease Area was again acknowledged in the Review Notice, it is not surprising a second appeal by Larrakia Nation followed. Another appeal hearing was then set down for December 3, 2015, before Magistrate Bruxner sitting in Casuarina. Apparently the Heritage Council conceded to the appeal and the hearing did not go ahead. As a result it is presumed that the nomination to declare the Kulaluk Lease as a Heritage Site was to proceed as required under Section 26 of the Heritage Act which states as follows: 
NT HERITAGE ACT
 26 Public consultation on heritage significance of place or object 
(1) As soon as practicable after preparing the statement of heritage value for the place or object, the Council must invite submissions on the heritage significance of the place or object by: 
(a) giving a written notice to: 
(i) each interested person for the place or object; and 
(ii) anyone else the Council considers is likely to be directly affected if the place or object is declared to be a heritage place or object; and

(b) publishing a notice in a newspaper circulating generally throughout the Territory.

(2) The notice must state: 
(a) where copies of the statement of heritage value can be obtained; and 
(b) submissions are to be made to the Council in writing within 28 days after the public notice is given (the public consultation period).

(3) The Council must make available, without fee, copies of the statement of heritage value.
If the above information is correct, “as soon as practicable” the Heritage Council must distribute a written notice to all interested people and those likely to be affected, as well as advertising in the NT News. Those who wish to make a submission then have 28 days to reply. I presume the list of interested persons would include everyone who has made submissions on rezoning applications within the Kulaluk Lease Area in recent years.
Considering the above, has the Heritage Council decided on any set timeframe for the public consultation period? 
In addition, is it possible to receive a copy of Dr David Ritchie's report? I see no reason why this undoubtedly well-informed and important report should not be publicly available. My postal address is as above.
I gratefully await your prompt reply.
Yours sincerely
Dr William B Day

Consulting Anthropologist

20 January 2016
